
 

 
Putting People First Providing for our Communities Preserving our Heritage Promoting the County Protecting our Future  

County of Herefordshire District Council, PO Box 239, HEREFORD, HR1 1ZU 

Main Switchboard (01432) 260000 - www.herefordshire.gov.uk 
$$Agenda0.doc 

 

Chief Executive’s Office 
Chief Executive:  N.M. Pringle 

To:  All Members of Cabinet: 
 RJ Phillips (Leader)
 LO Barnett
 AJM Blackshaw
 H Bramer
 JP French
 JA Hyde
 JG Jarvis
 DB Wilcox  

Your Ref:  

Our Ref: 

Please ask for: 

Direct Line/Extension: 

Fax: 

E-mail: 

 

NMP/SAHC 

Mr. N.M. Pringle 

(01432) 260044 

(01432) 340189 

npringle@herefordshire.gov.uk 

9th August, 2007 

 

Dear Councillor, 
 
MEETING OF CABINET 
THURSDAY, 16TH AUGUST, 2007 AT 2.00 P.M. 
THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD (TBC) 
 

AGENDA (07/09) 
 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL - NOTICE UNDER REGULATION 15 OF THE LOCAL 
AUTHORITIES (EXECUTIVE ARRANGEMENTS((ACCESS TO INFORMATION) REGULATIONS 

2000 (AS AMENDED) 
 

Notice is hereby given that the following reports contain key decisions.  When the decisions have 
been made, Members of the relevant Scrutiny Committee will be sent a copy of the decision notices 
and given the opportunity to call-in the decisions. 
 
Item 
No 

Title Portfolio 
Responsibility 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

Included in the 
Forward Plan 

Yes/No 
3 Brilley Church of England Primary 

School 
Children’s 
Services 

Children’s 
Services 

No 

4 Capital Investment in Schools in 
Herefordshire: A Way Forward 

Children’s 
Services 

Children’s 
Services 

No 

 
 

 

  
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
  
 To receive any apologies for absence.   
  

. 



 

 
Putting People First Providing for our Communities Preserving our Heritage Promoting the County Protecting our Future  

County of Herefordshire District Council, PO Box 240, HEREFORD, HR1 1ZT 

Main Switchboard (01432) 260000 - www.herefordshire.gov.uk 
$$Agenda0.doc 

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
  
 To receive any declarations of interest by members in respect of items on this agenda.   
  
3. BRILLEY CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL   
  
 To consider the response on the consultation on the proposal to close Brilley Church of 

England Primary School with effect from 31st August 2007.  (Pages 1 - 6) 
  
4. CAPITAL INVESTMENT IN SCHOOLS IN HEREFORDSHIRE: A WAY FORWARD   
  
 Cabinet to consider the options available on three school capital investment projects, and 

advise on which option should be pursued.  Each project is dealt with as a separate report to 
help the understanding of the situation in each case.  (Pages 7 - 20) 

  
  
Yours sincerely,  
 

 
N.M. PRINGLE 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
 
Copies to: Chairman of the Council 

Chairman of Strategic Monitoring Committee 
Vice-Chairman of Strategic Monitoring Committee 
Chairmen of Scrutiny Committees 
Group Leaders 
Directors 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
 

 



E:\MODERNGOV\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\5\8\AI00011855\PUBLINFcabinetcdbus750.doc08/08/07 

The Public's Rights to Information and Attendance at 
Meetings  
 
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO:- 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings 

unless the business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or 
‘exempt' information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of 
the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees 
and written statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual 
Cabinet Members for up to six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a 
period of up to four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the 
background papers to a report is given at the end of each report).  A 
background paper is a document on which the officer has relied in writing 
the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all 
Councillors with details of the membership of the Cabinet, of all 
Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to 
items to be considered in public) made available to the public attending 
meetings of the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have 
delegated decision making to their officers identifying the officers 
concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of 
access, subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a 
maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50, for postage).   

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend 
meetings of the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to 
inspect and copy documents. 



E:\MODERNGOV\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\5\8\AI00011855\PUBLINFcabinetcdbus750.doc08/08/07 

 

Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made 
available in large print or on tape.  Please contact 
the officer named below in advance of the meeting 
who will be pleased to deal with your request. 

The Council Chamber where the meeting will be held is accessible for visitors 
in wheelchairs, for whom toilets are also available. 

A public telephone is available in the reception area. 

Public Transport links 

• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service that 
runs approximately every half hour from the ‘Hopper’ bus station at the 
Tesco store in Bewell Street (next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool 
Street / Victoria Street / Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Old Eign Hill near to its 
junction with Hafod Road.  The return journey can be made from the same 
bus stop. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

If you have any questions about this Agenda, how the Council works or would 
like more information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information 
described above, you may do so either by telephoning Mrs Sally Cole on 
01432 260249 or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 
p.m. Monday - Thursday and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council 
Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford. 

 

 

Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-
Consumer waste. De-inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening 
agents (OBA). Awarded the Nordic Swan for low emissions during production 
and the Blue Angel environmental label. 

 



FIREBROCK0.doc 21.05.97 

COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 
 

 
In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through 
the nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point J which is located 
at the southern entrance to the car park.  A check will be 
undertaken to ensure that those recorded as present have 
vacated the building following which further instructions will be 
given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or 
returning to collect coats or other personal belongings. 





 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

George Salmon, Head of Commissioning & Improvement – Schools & Services on (01432) 260802 
  

Brilleyreport070807updated1.doc  

BRILLEY CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

PORTFOLIO RESPONSIBILITY: CHILDREN’S SERVICES 

CABINET 16TH AUGUST, 2007 

 

Wards Affected 

Kington 

Purpose 

To consider the response on the consultation on the proposal to close Brilley Church of 
England Primary School with effect from 31

st
 August 2007. 

Key Decision  

This is a Key Decision because it is likely to be significant in terms of its effect on 
communities living or working in Herefordshire in an area comprising one or more wards. 

Recommendation 

THAT Brilley Church of England Primary School close on 31
st
 August 2007. 

Reasons 

• There are no pupils on roll at the school at present. 
• At the end of the spring term parents voted to transfer the pupils to another school.  
• In future there is no prospect of a greater number of children wishing to attend the 

school. 
• There have been no objections to the statutory notice to close the school. 

 

Considerations 

1. A review of school provision was started in the Kington, Weobley and Wigmore Area 
in the summer of 2006 in light of falling numbers of children in the county. 

2. At this point there were only 28 pupils on roll and only 20 children under the age of 5 
living in the area. In January 2007 there were 19 on roll broken down in terms of boys 
and girls in the following age groups 

(see table on next page) 

 

AGENDA ITEM 3

1



 

Age F M Total 

4 2 1 3 

5 3 2 5 

6 0 1 1 

7 0 5 5 

8 0 3 3 

9 0 2 2 

Total 5 14 19 

 

3. Following the initial consultation, a proposals document was issued in Spring 2007 
recommending for Brilley that ‘the maintenance of the status quo was not an option….’ 
and ‘consideration should be given to federation with another school’ 

4. Meetings were held at Brilley School with Governors, parents and the community and 
at Eardisley Primary School. 

5. No school saw advantage in pursuing federation. In the meeting on 15
th
 March 2007, 

parents and Governors at Brilley Primary School voted that given the current and likely 
future low numbers, formal steps should be taken to close the school and, to minimise 
the impact on current children, all 17 children (who remained at the school) be 
transferred to Almeley Primary School for the start of the summer term 2007. 

6. The Cabinet agreed on 12
th
 April to issue public notices proposing to close the school. 

Places were offered and transport made available for all 17 children to Almeley. 

7. Notices were issued on 15
th
 May, and comments from schools, community and other 

statutory consultees listed in Appendix 1 were invited by 31
st
 July. No comments have 

been received. 

8. Consideration of a number of factors is required prior to a decision on closure is 
required. These are listed below. 

• The likely effect of the discontinuance of the school on the local community 
 

- At the meeting on 5
th
 March 2007 the community expressed support for the 

school not least because it was due to celebrate its 200
th
 anniversary in 2008. 

Many of the parents and Governors, who sought the transfer of children from 
the school also have roles within the community, judged that the needs of the 
children must take priority. It is also pertinent to note that no objections have 
been received to the public notice. 

 
• The availability, and likely cost to the local authority of transport to other schools 
 

- This is dealt with in the financial implication section below. 
 

• Any increase in the use of motor vehicles which is likely to result from the 
discontinuance of the school, and the likely effects of any such increase 

2



 
- The provision of alternative schools is more likely to make more children 

eligible to free transport, and therefore a reduction in motor vehicles is 
probable. 

 
• Any alternatives to the discontinuance of the schools 
 

- This is dealt with in the alternative options sections below. 
 
Alternative Provided Schools: In the public notices the existing catchment area is 
divided with the larger part of the area being provided in the future by Eardisley VA 
Primary School, and a smaller more northerly area to be served by Kington Primary 
School. The respective capacity and number on roll at these schools is as follows 

School Capacity NOR (Jan 07) 

 
Eardisley Primary School 105 88 
Kington Primary School 210 198 
 

The normal transport arrangements will apply with those under 8 living over 2 miles 
from the alternative school and those 8 and over living over 3 miles from the 
alternative provided school being eligible to free transport. Transport to Almeley for 
those who attended Brilley Primary School will continue for the period during which 
any of the 17 children attend Almeley. There is no change in the provided High School 
which remains Kington Lady Hawkins High School. 

Financial Implications 

Funding from Brilley Primary School is met from the Dedicated Schools Grant and 
Standards Fund. In 2006/07 it amounted to £189k. In future the Dedicated Schools Grant 
will be distributed to the remaining schools. There will be additional costs for transport which  
are met outside the Direct Schools Grant. It is estimated that this will be £25k per annum.  
However, against this all maintenance liabilities cease. The cost of outstanding maintenance  
has been estimated at £72k. On closure, the building reverts to the trustees. 
 

Risk Management 

Given the acceptance of the situation by parents and governors, albeit with reluctance, the 
closure of the school and alternative provision elsewhere minimises the risk to the education 
of children in the area. 

Alternative Options 

1. Keeping the school open. 

 At present Brilley Primary School exists in legal terms, but without any pupils. Staff 
have been given notice. It is possible for Cabinet to decide not to close the school 
but this would be perverse in the absence of any pupils. 

2. Making Different Alternative Provision. The alternative schools of Eardisley and 
Kington have been chosen because of their geographical position in relation to the 
existing catchment area, and the fact that they are in the same partnership area of 
Kington Lady Hawkins High School. Other schools could be considered, e.g. Clifford 
but geography and different feeder high schools suggests this would give rise to 
more problems. 

3



Consultees 

Published in the Hereford Times on 17
th
 May 2007. 

Sent for posting on Brilley C of E Primary School Notice Board, Brilley Village Hall Notice  
Board and Brilley Parish Council Notice Board on 15

th
 May 2007. 

Sent to Eardisley and Kington Primary School headteachers on 15
th
 May 2007. 

 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Public Notice 

Background Papers 

None identified. 

4



Appendix 1 
STATUTORY NOTICE OF A PROPOSAL TO DISCONTINUE A SCHOOL 
 
NOTICE is hereby given, in accordance with section 29 of the School Standards and Framework Act 
1998, that the County of Herefordshire District Council as Local Authority intend to discontinue Brilley 
Church of England Primary School, Whitney-on-Wye, Hereford, HR3 6JG, on 31st August 2007. 
[Explanatory Note 1 below]. 
 

It is proposed to provide for future pupils, living within the catchment area of Brilley Church of England 
Primary School, Whitney-on-Wye, Hereford, HR3 6JG at Eardisley Church of England Primary School 
and Kington Primary School.  Eardisley CE Primary School and Kington Primary School have 
sufficient room to accommodate all pupils currently under the age 5 living within the area of Brilley.  
The Council, therefore, has no proposals to increase the number of places at Eardisley CE Primary 
School or Kington Primary School.  Parents may alternatively seek admission to any other school. If 
parents want their child to go to a school which doesn’t have places available then they would have a 
right of appeal. [Explanatory Note 2 below]. It is proposed that Eardisley Primary School will be the 
provided school for all the area currently served by Brilley, with the exception of the houses on or to 
the north of the minor road from Crossway on the A4111 to Brilley Mount on the C1072. The provided 
Primary School for this area will be Kington Primary School. 
 
The proposed transport arrangements are for children living within the respective parts of the 
catchment area of Brilley to be offered appropriate free transport assistance for their journey to and 
from Eardisley CE Primary School or Kington Primary School each day, provided they live more than 
2 miles (children under 8) or 3 miles (children 8 and over) from Eardisley CE Primary School or 
Kington Primary School or have other relevant circumstances covered by the Authority’s home to 
school transport policy.  [Explanatory Note 3 below]. 
 
Any person may object to the proposals by sending their objection in writing to the Director of 
Children’s Services, The Herefordshire Council, PO Box 185, Hereford, HR4 9ZR.  The closing date 
of this consultation period is 31st July 2007. Within a month after the end of the objection period, the 
Herefordshire Council will send to the School Organisation Committee for the area copies of all 
objections made (and not withdrawn in writing) within the objection period, together with the 
Authority’s observations on them. (Unless DfES issue regulations to abolish the role of the School 
Organisation Committee, in which case any objections will be reported to the Council. 
 
Explanatory Notes. 
 
Note 1 
Brilley CE Primary School is a very small school with currently no children on roll following the transfer 
of 18 pupils to Almeley Primary School at the start to the summer term.  The future of the school has 
been under consideration within the Review of the Kington, Weobley and Wigmore Areas.  Recently, 
the Governing Body have concluded that, despite the school’s very good work over several years, it 
would now be in the interests of the children for the school to close permanently as soon as possible.  
The Council have supported the governors’ conclusion and have now authorised the issue of a public 
notice to discontinue the school on 31st August 2007. 
 
Note 2 
If the proposal to discontinue the school is approved, particular attention will be given to the needs of 
the pupils who will transfer to other schools, and to the resourcing of the receiving schools for the 
additional pupils involved.  The extra transport costs and the additional costs for the receiving 
school(s) will be the first call on the annual revenue resources released.  All remaining resources 
released (estimated at £60,000 annually) will be allocated through the L.M.S Formula to all other 
schools in the County. 
 

5



 
Note 3 
It is anticipated that transport will be in the form of a contracted vehicle, operating at suitable times on 
every day the school is in session.  The provided transport will make stops before and after school to 
pick up/set down children at reasonable locations along its route.  
 
George Salmon 
Head of Commissioning & Improvement – Schools & Services on behalf of Herefordshire Local  
Authority 
Date: 15.05.07 

6



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

George Salmon, Head of Commissioning & Improvement (Schools & Services) on (01432) 260802 
  

CapInvestmentReportinSchools02070710.doc  

CAPITAL INVESTMENT IN SCHOOLS IN 
HEREFORDSHIRE: A WAY FORWARD 

PORTFOLIO RESPONSIBILITY: CHILDREN’S SERVICES 

CABINET 16TH AUGUST, 2007 

 

Wards Affected 

County-wide.  

Purpose 

Cabinet to consider the options available on three school capital investment projects, and 
advise on which option should be pursued.  Each project is dealt with as a separate report to 
help the understanding of the situation in each case. 

Key Decision 

All Recommendations are Key Decisions because they are likely to be significant in terms of 
its effect on communities living or working in Herefordshire in an area comprising one or 
more wards. 

The Minster College and Westfield Special School 

Recommendations 

THAT Cabinet identify which option should be pursued in the development of The 
Minster campus given the possibilities identified and the officer recommended as set 
out below  

(a) Progress be made on The Minster College alone, with resolution to the 
Westfield Special School accommodation issues being left until a 
countywide strategy for special schools has been developed; 

(b) (i) The Minster be re-developed for 900 11-16 students and 120 post-16 
students (this is the recommended option) or 

(ii) The Minster be re-developed for 750 11-16 students and 120 post-16 
students; 

(c) Proposals for a Youth Centre created by the conversion of the existing 
design technology space be developed and considered as part of the 
Council’s annual capital planning process; 

(d) Facilities for use by the Marches Consortium, and for industrial 
enterprise be provided, if funding is available from the consortium, and 
Advantage West Midlands accordingly and if a lease can be agreed 
which reflects the cost of the accommodation. 

AGENDA ITEM 4

7



Reasons 

 (a) In the case of The Minster College, a capacity of 900 in the main school and 120 in 
the Sixth Form will meet projected need in Leominster, taking into account the 400 
house development at Baron’s Cross, and the likely popularity of the school.  On the 
other hand, building capacity above the number of students currently on roll (698 
including Sixth Form) will possibly undermine schools such as Weobley High School 
and Bromyard Queen Elizabeth High School. 

(b) Relocation of Westfield Special School on The Minster Campus is the solution 
currently available to bring much needed improvements in accommodation for that 
school.  However, this solution may not allow for all the future demands on this 
service either within the county as a whole or in the northern part of it.  The DfES has 
indicated that this element of funding can be held over, providing an opportunity to 
explore options for the whole service. 

(c) Youth facilities in Leominster are poor and are in a leased property.  The conversion 
of an existing building opposite the Sports Centre and Swimming Pool provides a 
longer-term solution in an appropriate location. This should be subject to the 
Council’s usual capital planning processes as neither the estimated costs nor the 
means of funding have been finalised. 

(d) Opportunities exist on The Minster Campus to maintain teacher training, adult 
education, and work training within The Minster development, and to secure them 
confirmation of funding from external bodies is sought.  External use would then be 
managed through lease and user agreement. 

Considerations 

All the issues raised in this report need to be considered in the context of the falling numbers 
of pupils in the County. Reductions will continue in the Primary sector for the next 10 years 
and in the Secondary sector for the next 20 years.  Migration into the County and new 
housing developments may reduce the extent of the fall in numbers, but will not reduce it 
significantly.  Within this period, Central Government is pursuing the rebuilding of much of 
the school estate, both at Primary and Secondary level.  The DfES and Partnerships for 
Schools are clearly pushing for these investment programmes to be based on sound 
strategic thinking.  This is the context in which all three projects must be considered.  

1. The following factors should be considered in the discussion on The Minster College 
scheme. 

o DfES have provided £19.3M for a 900 place 11-16 High School with 120 in 
the Sixth Form. This figure is calculated on the anticipated building costs in 
the first quarter of 2008. 

o The number of children under the age of 11 living in the catchment varies 
between 136 and 195 per year group. 

o There are 360 dwellings allocated in Leominster in the current UDP, and all 
indications suggest that the market towns will be the focus of further housing 
allocations to 2025. 

o At present the intake for September 2007 is 120 from a cohort of 195, with 
students from The Minster catchment area seeking places in Tenbury High 
School (9), Bishop of Hereford’s Bluecoat High School (8), Weobley High 
School (25), Wigmore High School (7) and Other Schools (30). 

8



o If the numbers of children in the town do not increase significantly, there is a 
possibility that either The Minster would have empty places, or that The 
Minster like Whitecross High School & Specialist Sports College, would 
become oversubscribed, and the schools currently benefiting from children in 
that area would not continue to do so. For admission in September 2007, 
students living in The Minster catchment area obtained places in those 
schools listed in the previous paragraph.  Both scenarios are real possibilities.  
However, it is impossible to predict with accuracy what will happen as so 
much depends on parental preference. 

2. It was originally proposed to include Westfield Special School in the project.  The 
following factors were considered in this: 

o The DfES allocated £1.925M for special education needs provision within The 
Minster Project. This £1.9M is not sufficient to build a ‘stand alone’ special 
school, to present requirements set out by the DfES in their Building Bulletins. 
This has been costed at over £3M, and would provide a building of 1,341m²   

o Westfield Special School is in poor accommodation, built on a very limited 
site, at a time when the level of children’s needs were not as severe as they 
are today. It serves the 5-18 age range currently 

o An integrated design was being pursued as one option. This involved older 
students from the special school being taught within the mainstream school. 
Separate provision was suggested for the primary aged children, and for the 
specialist areas, which children with severe needs require, whatever their age. 
This would allow the accommodation for the special school pupils to be 
reduced from 1,341m² to 1,004m². However, it is a compromise and further 
professional debate is required before this level of investment is committed. 

o This accommodation could be built for £2.2M, a shortfall of just under £300k. 
Although contractually committed in 2008, the monies would actually be spent 
in 2010/11 and 2011/12. The DfES have confirmed that the allocation of 
£1.925M could be held over until the Local Authority found a solution to its 
satisfaction. 

o A federated management structure would be required to ensure that the 
interests of both the children in mainstream school and in the special school 
were not compromised. Visits have been made to Telford and Teeside where 
such campus arrangement operate. In the Telford case a scheme at the cost 
of £80M was devised with a 3-4 year planning \ ‘lead-in’ time. In the absence 
of a significant budget and when specification has to be defined in a matter of 
months, there is a higher risk that the solution might not be as good as it 
should be particularly for the group of vulnerable children with severe needs. 
A countywide strategy for special schools is being developed and decisions 
could be clearer once this is in place. 

3. The current youth facilities in Leominster are inadequate, and this has caused 
problems within the wider community. The County Youth Officer sees the ideal 
solution as a new building of 323m², similar to the one at Lady Hawkin’s High School 
Kington. This would require a budget of £579,000. In the absence of that level of 
funding, conversion of an existing building is being considered. In the new building of 
The Minster College, the current Design/Technology block would be vacated. This 
block does require re-roofing and internal refurbishment, but would provide a space 
of 663m². Given its location next to the leisure centre and swimming pool, it is 
proposed that this building be converted to Youth centre use in 2010.  The cost of 
this conversion work is not yet known.  Section 106 funding may be available to pay 

9



for this work.  A S106 contribution of £250k is due but not yet received from the Barons 
Cross development for community facilities but there is a restriction on its use in that the 

landowner has to give consent to the spending proposals.  Consideration could be given to 
the excess area in this building being leased to the external users listed below, on 
commercial terms, reflecting any capital contribution they may make.  A capital project 
appraisal is needed in line with the Council’s capital planning procedures to assess the 
business case for this proposal. 

 
4. At The Minster College, Marches Consortium lease both ground for a mobile and 

accommodation for teacher training and other adult courses. On completion of the 
new school, all temporary accommodation should be removed. If the Marches do 
wish to have a presence on the site, this would be welcomed, but on the basis that 
the consortium provide the capital investment for such facilities. Similarly, there have 
been discussions with Advantage West Midlands in terms of the opportunities the 
Minster new build presents. It is suggested that the learning village currently housed 
in temporary accommodation on an industrial estate be relocated in permanent 
accommodation on The Minster site. The college supports this, but it is on the 
understanding Advantage West Midlands will provide the capital funding to achieve it.  

Financial Implications 

A capital grant, cash-flowed over a 4 year period, has been offered by the DfES. Its value 
reflects the specification levels expected by the DfES based in building costs in the first 
quarter of 2008. It is the Council’s risk if inflation is higher. Early decisions are required to 
minimise that risk. 

If the option to include Westfield Special School in the project is preferred, a shortfall of 
£300k is anticipated, with expenditure anticipated in 2010/11. This could be offset by use of 
the capital receipt from the existing site subject to further approval or against the capital 
allocations from the DfES in that year. The DfES have stated that in September 2007 local 
authorities will be told their capital allocations for the next 3 years. 

Risk Management 

The Minster College and Westfield Special School 

o The DfES allocations are based on estimated building costs in March 2008. The 
Local Authority bears the risk that inflation is greater than projected or that the 
contract is not signed until far later in 2008. The project is being managed on Prince 
2 principles. A decision by Cabinet will allow detailed tenders to be sought. 

o If a combined Minster/Westfield project is pursued the move from separate 
institutions to integrated provision and management carries a service risk that 
provision will not meet students needs. This has been assessed, visits made to other 
examples in the UK, and assurances can be given that provision will be much better 
than is currently available, but doubt remains that the integrated option would provide 
the best long term solution. 

o The Minster College will become either oversubscribed to the detriment of other 
schools or operate with surplus capacity. This issue will be considered within the 
wider review. 

10



Alternative Options 

These have been described in the ‘Considerations’ section. 

Consultees 

The Minster College and Westfield Special School 

Appendices 

Appendix 1. Plan of The Minster Campus 

Background Papers 

None 

 

Wyebridge Academy 

Recommendations 

THAT Cabinet identify which option should be pursued in the development of 
Wyebridge Sports College 

(a)  (i) In the development of Wyebridge Sports College as an Academy, the 
school be built for 900 11-16 pupils, and 200 post-16 students or 

(ii) The sponsors be informed that the Council believes it to be more 
appropriate to build on academy with a capacity of 750 with 200 post-16 
students 

 The former is the recommended option. 

Reasons 

 (a) A capacity of 900 in Wyebridge Academy will provide sufficient space to serve the 
South Wye area, assuming that some pupils will still seek places in other high 
schools. Sixth Form provision is seen as a means to encourage post-16 participation 
in this area, and is provision, on which DfES is insisting. However for admission in 
September 2007 only 148 out of a resident cohort of 294 sought places at Wyebridge 
Sports College. 

Considerations 

The strategic nature of this decision in the context described within The Minster report also  
applies to this project.   
 
1. Feasibility work is currently underway on the proposal that Wyebridge Sports College 

becomes an academy in 2009. The expression of interest jointly submitted by the 
Local Authority, the School Governors and the Diocese of Hereford proposed that the 
school should be built for an annual admission of 180 students given that the number 
of children living in the catchment area varies between 200 and 300, and the South 
Wye area is one area in the County, where no significant fall in the number of 
children is projected. 

11



For admission to High Schools for September 2007, the 294 children in Year 6 living 
in the area chose the following High Schools; 

Wyebridge Sports College   148 

Kingstone High School     56 

Bishop of Hereford’s Bluecoat School    14 

St Mary’s R C High School     30 

Aylestone High School     23 

Others include independent schools    29 

Total       294 

 

If the academy did admit 180 students per year, Kingstone High School is likely to 
have reduced numbers, potentially losing children to Fairfield High School and the 
academy. Additional children might be lost if the Waldorf Steiner Academy was built 
at Much Dewchurch. 

In addition, new post-16 provision is proposed to encourage participation in 
continuing education. The current providers, Hereford Sixth Form College and the 
College of Technology have objected to this, but the DfES argue that a minimum of 
200 additional places are needed if their aim of an 80% staying-on rate within the 
Academy is to be achieved. 

The alternative would be to suggest to the Sponsors and DfES that it might be more 
appropriate to build to a lower capacity of 600 or 750. Although this would reduce the 
risk to other schools, it is unlikely to meet the demand from the South Wye area. 

Financial Implications 

The DfES offer the total costs of fees, construction, and furniture and equipment. An 
allocation of £20.1M has been offered by the DfES. A separate bid has been made for £250k 
to support the Local Authority’s cost in design work to the stage that a contract is awarded.  
Partnerships for Schools have said that a decision on this bid should be made in time for a 
verbal report to be given to the Cabinet Meeting. if the bid is not approved in full, a decision 
would be needed if the Local Authority should challenge that decision or if the Local 
Authority should reconsider the whole proposal. 

On completion the asset of land and building would be transferred under a long-term lease 
to the Sponsor, i.e. trustees appointed by the Diocese of Hereford. The academy is directly 
funded by the DfES in revenue terms and the transfer from Dedicated Schools Grant will be 
equal to the delegated budget for the school that the authority would have calculated through 
its local formula, had the school stayed in the maintained sector.  The higher the number of 
students attending the Academy, the lower the numbers will be that attend other nearby 
schools and thereby reducing their total funding by a sum equivalent to the value of the loss 
of pupils. All other factors being equal this simply reflects the financial consequences of the 
changing popularity of schools.  

Risk Management 

Wyebridge Academy  

12



o The risk will be with the Local Authority in delivering the new accommodation on 
time, to budget, and to specification. Without firm information from Partnerships for 
Schools on each of these aspects the level of risk is difficult to assess. Additional 
capacity in terms of staff will be required. A bid for £265k is being made to 
Partnership for Schools to cover this. 

o The Academy will become either oversubscribed to the detriment of other schools or 
colleges or operate with surplus capacity. This again will be considered in the wider 
review. 

Alternative Options 

These have been described in the ‘Considerations’ section. 

Consultees 

Wyebridge School Governors 

Appendices 

None 

Background Papers 

Submissions of Interest for an Academy 

 

 

Staunton-on-Wye Primary School 

Recommendations 

(a) Given the disparity between the overall places available in the area and 
projected pupil numbers in the wider area, the Council withdraws its 
support for the project to replace Staunton-on-Wye Primary School;   

(b) The future of the existing school be determined as part of the overall 
review; 

(c) The current accommodation be monitored in the meantime in terms of 
Health and Safety to ensure that children and staff are not placed at any 
risk. 

Reasons 

(a) Despite the strong support the school currently has, provision of new buildings at 
Staunton-on-Wye is likely to attract children from Clifford, Madley, Eardisley and 
Weobley Primary Schools. The creation of a new school through changing the status 
of an existing school in the Golden Valley would be a better strategic option, and 
would provide aided provision in an area of the County where there currently is none. 

Considerations 

Again, this is a strategic decision to be taken in the context of future need for school places  

13



across the County. 
 
1. In the autumn of 2001 the DfES offered a 90% grant to the net costs of providing a 

new 3 class school at Staunton-on-Wye. This is an aided school with Church of 
England links, but operating separately to the Diocese of Hereford. 10% of the 
funding will be found by the School Governors. The Jarvis Educational Trust act as 
Foundation Governors, and have agreed to contribute to the 10% Governors’ share. 
They also understand that the value of the existing school, which would remain in 
their ownership, would have to offset the gross costs of the new school. 

The Local Authority, as it is required to do, has purchased a new site. Building of the 
new school has to be started before January 2012 or the site reverts to the original 
owners. 

The current school is successful. Ofsted in their inspection in March 2006 concluded 
that the school is good. 

There were 63 pupils on roll at the beginning of the summer 2007 term. Of these 29 
lived outside the catchment area, but 5 have addresses closer to Staunton-on-Wye 
Primary School than any other school. There were only 18 pupils from the village of 
Staunton-on-Wye. The numbers of children under the age of 5 living in the area is 34, 
according to information from the Primary Care Trust as at 31st August 2006. Data on 
current and future numbers in the Weobley, Kington and, Kingstone, Peterchurch 
areas are shown in the tables set out in Appendix 2.  As a guideline DfES and Audit 
Commission begin to be concerned when surplus places are more than 10% of the 
total, and more challenging questions are asked if that surplus figure increased to be 
over 20% of the total. It should be noted that % figures can be misleading when 
dealing with small numbers.  

In the 2 consultation periods in the Review of School Provision in the Kington, 
Weobley and Wigmore areas there has been a high degree of support shown in 
letters and e-mails for the school and the project for new buildings.  In a public 
meeting on 20th March, Governors, Parents, and members of the community 
unanimously supported the proposal for a new school arguing that; 

o It would provide a high standard of education, 

o It is popular and the Local Authority has a duty to support parental 
preference, 

o It contributes to the regeneration of Herefordshire attracting young families in 
search of good education, good environment and good quality of life, 

o The catchment area does not reflect proximity of many parents to the school, 

o The 90% grant would be lost to the County and investment at Staunton-on-
Wye may avoid Council expenditure in refurbishing other schools. 

There is no doubt that the existing 3 storey Victorian building is unsuitable for 21st 
century teaching and learning. In the past the hall ceiling has collapsed, and roofing 
materials have fallen on to the playground. The fire exit is through the adjoining parts 
of the building, which are empty. The building is regularly checked from a Health and 
Safety viewpoint, and although safe at present, high levels of maintenance are 
required. If the new building was not to proceed, the school should close on the 
grounds that the current accommodation is not suitable for teaching and learning in 
the 21st Century, that there are Health and Safety issues, and access for disabled 
children to the upper floors is not available. 

14



Although popular at present, in 1994 there were only 29 pupils on roll. Staunton-on-
Wye is likely to remain a small hamlet. In terms of strategic investment it would be 
preferable if investment could be made in a school serving a more substantial 
community. It is noted that there are no Church of England aided schools in either 
Kingstone or Peterchurch school partnerships. Alternative provision could be 
explored for those seeking denominational places within the further work on the 
review. 

The alternative is to proceed as originally planned in 2001. The next stage is for 
school Governors to appoint architects to proceed with detailed design work. This 
would allow the school to move into new accommodation in 2009/10 academic year. 
It is likely that the school in new buildings will become more popular albeit the School 
Governors have stated they do not wish to raise their admission number from 10. At 
a time of falling rolls this would have a detrimental impact on surrounding schools of 
Clifford, Eardisley, Madley, and Weobley. The latter serve larger villages and there is 
no strategic sense in closing these schools. Clifford Primary School is more 
vulnerable other than its role in serving children from Wales. 

Financial Implications 

The project to replace Staunton-on-Wye Primary School is the responsibility of the 
Governors of that school. The DfES do inflate their grant support in line with inflation. If the 
scheme proceeds, the Local Authority transfers the land on which the school is built to the 
Trustees, albeit retaining the playing-field (the provision of which is the Council’s 
responsibility). If the project does not proceed the site acquired in January 2007 is returned 
to the original owner. (We are likely to face demands for the legal costs in conveying the 
land back to the original owners) 

Risk Management 

Staunton-on-Wye Primary School 

The option leading to closure is contentious, and there is a statutory procedure to follow 
when closing a school. During this period, there maybe a negative reaction within the school 
and community which undermines the current and future performance of the school and the 
children within it. 

Alternative Options 

Two have been described in the ‘Considerations’ section. The third is not to proceed with the 
new school, and for the school to continue in its existing accommodation. Although the 
school is maintained in this option, it is wrong to plan on the continued use of 
accommodation fundamentally unsuitable for school use in the 21st Century. 

Consultees 

Staunton-on-Wye Governors, Parents and Community 

Appendices 

Appendix 2. Primary Surplus Spaces data 

Background Papers 

Kington, Weobley, Wigmore Discussion Paper 

Kington, Weobley, Wigmore Proposals Papers 

15



16



17



18



N
O

R
N

O
R

N
O

R
N

O
R

N
O

R
N

O
R

N
O

R

D
fe

s
 N

o
S

c
h

o
o

l
2

0
0

5
2

0
0

6
2

0
0

7
2

0
0

8
2

0
0

9
2

0
1

0
2

0
1

1
C

a
p

a
c

it
y

N
o

.
%

0
1

2
3

4
5

2
0

4
6

E
W

Y
A

S
 H

A
R

O
L

D
1

0
4

9
8

1
0

6
1

3
9

1
4

1
6

1
6

7
2

0
1

5

2
0

5
3

G
A

R
W

A
Y

9
1

8
0

7
4

1
0

5
8

1
0

8
4

8
1

2

2
0

9
5

K
IN

G
S

T
O

N
E

 &
 T

H
R

U
X

T
O

N
2

1
0

1
8

8
1

7
9

2
1

0
2

4
2

4
2

3
1

6
3

1
2

2

2
1

0
4

M
A

D
L

E
Y

1
5

6
1

5
2

1
6

3
1

6
8

1
1

1
6

2
4

1
5

1
7

1
1

3
0

7
9

M
U

C
H

 B
IR

C
H

 C
E

1
8

7
1

8
1

1
7

6
1

9
6

1
2

8
1

0
1

3
1

3
9

K
IN

G
S

T
O

N
E

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

2
7

5
3

2
7

0
5

2
7

0
5

8
2

3
8

0
0

7
8

0
7

5
0

8
1

8
6

8
8

.3
6

9
7

5
8

3
5

8
9

3
7

4

2
0

0
1

A
L

M
E

L
E

Y
6

1
6

6
6

2
6

3
3

6
3

6
6

6

3
0

0
7

(B
R

IL
L

E
Y

 C
E

)
3

0
3

1
1

9
5

6
2

5
4

2
4

3

3
0

3
5

E
A

R
D

IS
L

E
Y

 C
E

9
5

8
6

8
8

1
0

5
9

8
1

5
1

5
1

0
1

2

2
0

9
6

K
IN

G
T

O
N

1
9

0
1

9
7

1
9

8
2

1
0

3
6

4
2

3
9

4
4

4
0

4
9

3
3

6
6

P
E

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
E

9
4

9
1

9
3

9
5

1
0

1
5

9
1

6
1

0
1

5

K
IN

G
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

4
7

0
4

7
1

4
6

0
4

5
3

4
5

3
4

6
4

4
5

1
5

2
9

7
8

1
4

.7
6

0
7

6
7

0
8

3
7

0
8

5

3
0

1
5

C
A

N
O

N
 P

Y
O

N
 C

E
9

8
9

6
8

9
9

1
5

5
1

1
1

0
8

6

3
0

2
6

C
R

E
D

E
N

H
IL

L
, 

S
T

 M
A

R
Y

'S
 C

E
1

5
6

1
5

6
1

5
6

2
1

0
3

8
2

8
4

0
3

6
3

6
4

2

3
0

3
0

D
IL

W
Y

N
 C

E
4

3
3

4
4

3
5

6
4

5
5

4
7

4

3
3

7
8

S
T

A
U

N
T

O
N

-O
N

-W
Y

E
 E

N
D

O
W

E
D

6
4

6
4

6
3

7
0

3
8

6
6

1
1

5

2
1

5
8

W
E

O
B

L
E

Y
1

7
2

1
6

7
1

5
9

2
1

0
1

3
1

4
2

4
1

1
1

6
1

9

W
E

O
B

L
E

Y
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
5

3
3

5
1

7
5

1
0

4
9

2
5

0
1

4
9

6
4

8
0

6
3

7
1

5
7

2
4

.6
6

3
6

0
8

6
6

7
7

8
7

6

2
0

3
1

C
L

IF
F

O
R

D
7

2
6

4
7

0
7

0
1

0
1

1
6

8
7

1
7

2
1

0
1

L
O

N
G

T
O

W
N

4
8

4
4

5
2

5
6

3
4

1
2

8
1

5
1

2

2
1

1
6

M
IC

H
A

L
E

C
H

U
R

C
H

 E
S

C
L

E
Y

5
4

4
9

5
9

5
6

0
1

1
1

5
0

2
1

2
2

P
E

T
E

R
C

H
U

R
C

H
7

1
7

9
7

1
1

0
5

1
6

2
0

1
9

1
5

1
3

1
7

P
E

T
E

R
C

H
U

R
C

H
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
2

4
5

2
3

6
2

5
2

2
4

5
2

4
7

2
3

7
2

3
7

2
8

7
5

0
1

7
.4

2
9

3
6

3
8

3
2

4
0

4
6

K
n

o
w

n
 C

h
ild

re
n

 w
it
h

in
 C

a
tc

h
m

e
n

t 
- 

th
is

 i
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 d

a
ta

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 P

C
T

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
o

s
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d

 w
it
h

 G
.P

.'s
 l
is

te
d

 a
c
c
o

rd
in

g
 t

o
 

th
e

ir
 h

o
m

e
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 a

s
 a

t 
A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

0
6

.

S
u

rp
lu

s
 2

0
1

1
K

n
o

w
n

 C
h

il
d

re
n

 W
it

h
in

 C
a

tc
h

m
e

n
t 

b
y
 a

g
e

A
c

tu
a

l 
a

n
d

 p
ro

je
c

te
d

 P
u

p
il

 N
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
n

 R
o

ll
 i

n
 K

in
g

s
to

n
e

, 
K

in
g

to
n

, 
W

e
o

b
le

y
 a

n
d

 P
e

te
rc

h
u

rc
h

 A
re

a
s

A
c
tu

a
l

P
ro

je
c
te

d

N
O

R
 -

 N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
u

p
ils

 o
n

 R
o

ll 
in

 S
p

ri
n

g
 T

e
rm

19



20


	Agenda
	
	FIRE-BROCK

	3 BRILLEY CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL
	Brilley Appendix 1 - Closure Notice of School

	4 CAPITAL INVESTMENT IN SCHOOLS IN HEREFORDSHIRE: A WAY FORWARD
	Cap Investment Appendix 1 MinsterWestfield last layout
	Cap Investment Appendix 2 Data


